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INTRODUCTION

ABOUT SAVH

The Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped (SAVH), formerly known 
as the Singapore Association for the Blind (SAB), is the national voluntary welfare 
organisation for the blind in Singapore. Founded in 1951, SAVH aims to help the 
visually impaired to acquire new skills and gain self-reliance to integrate into 
society.

Vision

To promote the needs, interests and aspirations of the visually handicapped. 

Mission

To help the visually handicapped help themselves.

Objectives

l To serve as an association for the visually handicapped and to promote the 
welfare of the visually handicapped in Singapore;

l To facilitate and encourage greater participation of the visually handicapped 
in the administration of their affairs, activities and in the Association’s 
management;

l To work towards the abolition of architectural, attitudinal, social, cultural, 
educational, employment and other barriers that prevent the total 
integration and equal treatment of the visually handicapped in the 
community;

l To encourage eye care, safety and research in the prevention and cure of 
blindness and related diseases;

l To do all such other things as are conducive to attaining the above 
objectives, including appeals for funds to help the visually handicapped.
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Registration

SAVH is affiliated to the National Council of Social Service (NCSS), registered with 
the Registrar of Societies (172/1951 WEL) and Commissioner of Charities (00059), 
with a Unique Entity Number for Societies (S61SS0119J) and is an approved 
Institution of Public Character (IPC000443 renewed from 1 January 2014 to 30 
September 2016). 

Corporate Governance

SAVH has complied fully with the Governance Evaluation Checklist for IPCs. The 
complete checklist is available at www.charities.gov.sg

Conflict of Interest Policy

All Executive Committee members, chairpersons of sub-committees and staff of 
SAVH are required to read and understand the Association’s conflict of interest 
policy and make full disclosure of interests, relationships and holdings that 
could potentially result in a conflict of interest. The members and staff have fully 
complied with the conflict of interest policy. 
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SAVH CLIENTS & MEMBERS

CLIENTS

SAVH serves Singapore citizens and permanent residents who must be certified 
blind or with low vision (partial sight) by an eye specialist or ophthalmologist. 
These include people who are born blind as well as those who have lost their 
vision through accidents, illnesses or ageing. 

Clients are entitled to the whole range of services at the Association including 
eye care, rehabilitation, training and counselling, provided mostly free of charge. 
They are also eligible to receive subsidies to purchase assistive devices, subject to 
means testing.

Clients at SAVH range from infants to the elderly. As at 31 March 2014, the number
of registered clients stood at 3,332.

Yearly Trend of Registered Clients

Financial
Year

Blind Low Vision All Clients

Cumulative
Total

Newly
Registered

Cumulative
Total

Newly
Registered

Cumulative
Total

Newly
Registered

2003/04 1,087 27 1,456 100 2,543 127

2004/05 1,111 35 1,549 116 2,660 151

2005/06 1,110 9 1,646 109 2,756 118

2006/07 1,118 15 1,716 83 2,834 98

2007/08 1,130 16 1,789 87 2,919 103

2008/09 1,134 14 1,895 114 3,029 128

2009/10 1,135 5 1,996 115 3,131 120

2010/11 1,142 10 2,093 103 3,235 113

2011/12 1,105 6 2,196 158 3,301 164

2012/13 1,074 24 2,257 120 3,331 144

2013/14 1,024 23 2,308 148 3,332 171
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Clients By Age & Gender

Age
Group

Blind Low Vision All Clients
Total %

Male Female Male Female Male Female

0 to 4 0 0 3 0 3 0 3 0.1

5 to 12 7 7 25 12 32 19 51 1.5

13 to 18 16 10 39 21 55 31 86 2.6

19 to 24 18 16 40 33 58 49 107 3.2

25 to 30 17 17 60 31 77 48 125 3.8

31 to 40 30 32 128 69 158 101 259 7.8

41 to 50 75 48 167 112 242 160 402 12.1

51 to 60 103 69 278 140 376 209 585 17.6

61 to 70 123 67 284 146 407 211 618 18.6

71+ 210 159 449 271 659 430 1089 32.8

Total 599 425 1473 835 2072 1260 3332 100

Clients By Ethnic Group & Gender

Ethnic
Group

Blind Low Vision All Clients
Total %

Male Female Male Female Male Female

Chinese 457 328 1149 663 1601 989 2590 77.9

Malay 87 61 173 94 260 155 415 12.5

Indian 48 29 127 60 175 89 264 7.9

Others 7 7 24 18 31 25 56 1.7

Total 599 425 1473 835 2072 1260 3332 100
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MEMBERS

SAVH members can be sighted or visually handicapped. Membership benefits 
include the right to:

l Attend and speak up at Annual General Meetings of the Association;
l Vote on all matters within the objects of the Association and to elect 

Executive Committee members;
l Stand for election as Executive Committee Members.

SAVH membership as at 31 March 2014 stood at 386. The breakdown is as follows:

Financial
Year

Visually Handicapped Sighted
Total

Ordinary Life Ordinary Life

2010//11 221 17 18 113 369

2011/12 222 17 20 115 374

2012/13 226 17 23 115 381

2013/14 226 19 23 118 386
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MESSAGES

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

Having served my  second year  as  the  President of  Singapore Association of  
the Visually Handicapped (SAVH), I am extremely humbled and honoured to be 
given this opportunity once again to serve SAVH and especially my friends with 
vision loss.

I still maintain that through my interaction with my visually challenged friends, 
it has made me realise that the sighted community has much to learn from those 
without sight. I respect their resilience and courage, despite facing challenges 
and adversity. I sincerely wish all of you to have a better life and that SAVH will 
make a difference to you.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

With the AGM scheduled on 30 August 2014, I would like to urge all members 
of SAVH to attend this event. Please show your support to SAVH by attending 
this event and feedback and comments on areas such as how we could better 
improve our overall services.

Financial performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, we achieved a good performance, 
with a surplus for the year of $501,208 compared to a surplus for the year of 
$445,284 in the previous year. This is mainly due to higher donations collected.  
Total funds increased to $6,498,955 compared to $5,026,810 in the previous year.

Funding by NCSS and Tote Board

We would like to express our thanks and appreciation to National Council of 
Social Services, Community Chest and Tote Board Social Service Fund for funding 
four of our many services, namely Braille Production Unit, Library Services, low 
Vision Clinic and Vision Rehabilitation Programme.

Special thanks also goes to President’s Challenge 2013 for their kind donation. 

Donors/ Volunteers/ Sponsors

On behalf of SAVH, I would like to thank all our donors, sponsors and volunteers 
for their unwavering support.
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Our major donors include Wilmar International Ltd, Leeward Pacific Pte Ltd, 
SymAsia Singapore  Fund,  BGC  Partners  (Singapore)  Ltd,  Estate  of  Phirozshaw  
Maneckji Framroz Deceased, Navroji Rustamji Mistri Deceased, Chua Beng Ee, Lee 
Ying, Wee Aik Koon Pte Ltd and Tote Board.

Special thanks also goes to the following:

Mr Qin Huai and his volunteers for organising the singing concert, Dr Lam Pin Min, 
MP Seng Kang West for being our Guest of Honour for this event.

Ikea Singapore for allowing us to sell our donation draw tickets at their premises.

The Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants for organising the ISCA Run   
and Mdm Halimah Yacob, Speaker of Parliament for gracing the occasion as the 
Guest of Honour.

ClearVision Eye Clinic, Vinci Arts, Lawry’s The Prime Rib and Dr Tony Ho for 
organising the dinner event with Minister of Social and Family Development,  
Mr Chan Chun Sing as Guest of Honour.

Building and Construction Authority of Singapore (BCA) for their support and 
donations.

Many of our volunteers from Touch Art, Braille Production Department, White 
Cane Club, Standard Chartered Bank, BCA, Credit Suisse, Goldman Sachs, ISCA and 
many others have given us their invaluable time and support. We thank each and 
every one. Please continue to give your support.

Clients

We have to provide relevant and timely services to our clients in a holistic manner. 
As at the end of March 2014, we have about 3,332 clients.   With Singapore’s 
population aging, we hope to provide more services to this group. Currently we 
are looking into introducing new services for the youth and the elderly.

Members

As at end of March 2014, we have 386 members of which 141 are sighted and 245 
are blind. The Executive Committee hopes to increase membership so that those 
who can assist SAVH can be invited to participate as members.
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Staff

Our most important asset is our staff, which includes both sighted and those 
without sight. We thank them for their kind contribution. SAVH continues to face 
high staff turnover. We are therefore addressing this by looking into new initiatives.

Highlights

We wish to thank MSF for selecting us for the ‘Care and Share Programme’. This will 
allow us to receive matching funds if it is used for appropriate categories.

In January 2014, the Government introduced a ‘Public Transport Concession 
Scheme for Persons with Disability’. This concession scheme will benefit people 
with disability. Our social workers are assisting our clients to take advantage of 
this scheme.

In March 2014, the ‘Enhanced Support for students to access opportunities in 
Institutes of Higher learning’ was introduced. This will provide a more structured 
and sustainable support to students with special education needs in our Institute 
of higher learning. There will be ‘Disability Support Office’ in each public-funded 
university, polytechnic, ITE college and arts institutions from this year. MOE will 
also set up a ‘Special Education Needs Fund’ to help students with challenges to 
better access a good post-secondary education.

Conclusion

On behalf of SAVH, I would like to once again express my thanks to our Patron, 
Professor Tommy Koh, for his unwavering support, my Executive Committee 
members including my two Vice Presidents, clients, members, donors , volunteers 
and staff .
Let us together ‘help the blind to help themselves’.

Phillip Lee Soo Hoon
President
SAVH
19 July 2014
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HONORARY SECRETARY’S MESSAGE

On behalf of the Executive Committee, I present herewith the Annual Report of 
the Association for 2013/2014 term of office.

The Executive Committee

The 60th Annual General Meeting was held on 31 August 2013. The members who
were elected or co-opted to the Executive Committee at the meeting are named 
in the Executive Committee 2013/ 2014 section of this report.

New Executive Committee Members

The Executive Committee welcomed Mr Lau Kin Harn as the new Executive 
Committee member. He is an accountant with a multi- national company.

Resignation of Executive Committee Members

There were no resignations of Executive Committee members during the financial 
year.

New Members

8 new members joined SAVH during the financial year. We extend our welcome to
them.

Deceased Members

We regret to inform you that 6 members passed away during the financial year. We
send our deepest condolence.

Executive Committee Meetings

The Management Committee met on 12 occasions in FY 2013/2014.

Danny Chia Choon Guan
Honorary Secretary
22 July 2014



11SAVH Annual Report 2013/2014

HONORARY TREASURER’S MESSAGE

Overview

SAVH recorded a healthy surplus of $501,208 for the financial year ended 31 March
2014, compared to a surplus of $445,284 for the previous year.

For this period, we received funds from National Council of Social Services, 
Community Chest and Tote Board Service Fund for four of our services, namely 
Braille Production Unit, Low Vision Clinic, Vision Rehabilitation Programme and 
Library.

Income

There was an increase in total income to $3,573,674 from $2,847,365 in the previous
year. This is contributed mainly from more fundraising activities.

Expenditure

Total resources expended increased to $3,072,466 compared to $2,402, 081.

Assets

Total Assets stood at $6,651,059 an increase from the previous period of
$5,216,194.

Our accumulated funds is at a healthy position of $4,734,157 compared to 
$3,714,384 in the previous period. Total funds recorded (including accumulated 
funds) increased to $6,498,955 compared to $5,026,810 in the previous period.

In spite of our improved financial position, we should continue to control our cost 
and increase our fund raising effort. At the same time, we should be prudent in our
financial management and maintain good governance and best practices.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to the members of 
the Finance Sub-Committee and our staff for their invaluable support.

Victor Chen Kah Keng
Honorary Treasurer
23 July 2014
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 ORGANISATION

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 2013/2014
At 31 March 2014

Professor Tommy Koh Thong Bee  Patron
Mr Phillip Lee Soo Hoon  President
Mr Tan Guan Heng  Vice-President
Ms Chua Swee Keow  Vice-President
Mr Danny Chia Choon Guan  Honorary Secretary
Mr Victor Chen Kah Keng  Honorary Treasurer
Mr Albert Ang Hong Woo  Member
Mr Cheok Cheng Ann  Member
Mr Khoo Kong Ngian  Member
Mr Alfred Shee Ping Fatt  Member
Mr Adrian Tan Gim Hai  Member
Mr John Ting Kang Chung  Member
Mr Goh Yiu Huat  Member
Mr Lau Kin Harn Member

Mr Phillip Lee Soo Hoon is a retired audit partner of an accounting firm.
Mr Tan Guan Heng, who is visually handicapped, is a writer of many books.
Ms Chua Swee Keow is in the Human Resources field.
Mr Danny Chia Choon Guan, who is visually handicapped, is a teacher at a secondary 
school.
Mr Victor Chen Kah Keng is a Human Resource director in a multinational.
Mr Albert Ang Hong Woo is a semi-retired Accountant.
Mr Cheok Cheng Ann, who is visually handicapped, is a musician.
Mr Khoo Kong Ngian, who is visually handicapped, is a retired army officer, now in 
the insurance line.
Mr Alfred Shee Ping Fatt runs his own accounting practice.
Mr Adrian Tan Gim Hai is a practicing advocate and solicitor.
Mr John Ting Kang Chung is an architect.
Mr Goh Yiu Huat is a self-employed home tutor.
Mr Lau Kin Harn is an accountant with a multinational.
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CHART OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE & SUB-COMMITTEES
As at 31 March 2014
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STAFF CHART
As at 31 March 2014
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MAIN SERVICES

VISION REHABILITATION PROGRAMME

The Vision Rehab Programme (VRP) encompasses social work and rehabilitation 
services. The overall objective of the VRP is to enhance the quality of life of the 
visually handicapped through specialized self-help services. These services 
offered aim to equip the visually handicapped with practical life skills to 
gain functional independence and mobility. Vision rehabilitation focuses at 
maximizing the visually handicapped person’s self-efficacy and integration into 
mainstream society.

The Vision Rehab Programme provides the following services:

Casework and Counselling services

l The service involves a series of face-to-face interviews, home visits, case 
management, and other forms of intervention. Interviews were conducted 
with the client, and with family members, if necessary.

l The goal of the service is to help the client and their families to come to 
terms with the vision loss or impairment and find better ways to cope 
with the person’s disability. Through receiving the service, individuals and 
families are helped to regain stability and independence.

l Clients from needy families may be recommended to SAVH’s Financial 
Assistance Scheme and Food Ration Programme, upon assessment.

l Information on resources available in SAVH and the community is offered 
to the client and their family members. Referrals to external agencies, 
deemed necessary, may be made to assist them further.

Rehabilitation Services

l  Basic Cane Techniques (BCT) Training
l  Orientation & Mobility (O&M) Training
l  Basic Sighted Guide Techniques (BSGT) Training
l Activities of Daily Living (ADL) Training
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Home Care Programme

The Home Care Programme came about in response to a growing number of 
clients who are elderly and home bound. The service involves a mobile-team of 
professionals providing essential services to clients at their place of residence 
within the community.

The objectives of the service are:

l  To help clients acquire independent living skills;
l  To enhance clients’ accessibility and modifications to environment for 

independent living and community integration;
l  To improve the mental wellness of clients and their caregivers; and
l  To enhance the quality of life of clients.

Financial Assistance

The Tan Chay Bing Education Fund and Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme 
provided visually handicapped students from lower income groups with annual 
bursaries and tuition grants respectively.

Forty students benefitted from the Tan Chay Bing Education Fund while another 
four students received monthly tuition subsidies from the Credit Suisse Tuition 
Subsidy Scheme. 

During the financial year, student volunteers from the Regular Service Project 
for the Visually Handicapped (RSPVH) of Nanyang Technological University 
conducted weekly group tuition for students with visual impairment. In addition, 
RSPVH also organised recreational activities for the students.

Referrals to SAVH

For the year 2013/2014, 171 clients were registered; 48.4% of the referrals were 
from Singapore National Eye Centre while 14% of the clients were referred by 
TTSH. Referrals from SAVH’s Low Vision Clinic, Changi Hospital, Khoo Teck Puat 
and National University Hospital form 37.6% of the referrals.

A breakdown of the referrals is given in the table below.
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Sources of Referrals of New Clients in FY 2013/14

Institution Number

Singapore National Eye Centre 83

Tan Tock Seng Hospital 24

Changi General Hospital 11

National University Hospital 9

Alexandra Hospital 0

Khoo Teck Puat Hospital 8

SAVH Low Vision Clinic 18

Jurong Medical Centre 1
Others(including Gleneagles Hospital, Camden Medical Centre,  
Mount Elizabeth Hospital) 17

Total 171

Cane & Mobility Training

108 newly registered clients were provided with a free white cane each. These 
clients were taught to move about safely and effectively within their homes and 
in the community.

A total of 158 clients were assessed and trained by the Therapy Section in Basic 
Cane Techniques (BCT) Orientation and Mobility (O & M) and Activities of Daily 
Living (ADL) during the financial year.

Training in mobility provided visually impaired clients with skills necessary to 
travel safely and independently. The focus was to enable clients to travel with 
confidence and be self-reliant.

Sighted Guide Training

SAVH therapists provided training in Basic Sighted Guide Techniques (BSGT) to 
514 volunteers and caregivers during the reporting period.
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Number of Clients, Caregivers and Volunteers Trained in FY 2013/2014 

Type Of Training Clients Caregivers And  
Volunteers

Basic Cane Technique 113 -

Orientation and Mobility 40

Activities of Daily Living 05
Basic Sighted Guide 
Techniques - 514

Total 158 514

Social and Recreational Events

1. Thirty-Three activities and outings were organised for the clients by various 
organisations, institutions and volunteers. The list of activities included the 
following:

l Lunch by Ba’alwi Mosque
l Lunches and dinners hosted by various temples
l Regular lunches hosted by Ellen and Friends
l Visit to Gardens-By-the-Bay
l Day out on Star Cruise organised by volunteers
l NTU – Eye Am Aware held in Sentosa
l I Fly
l Sensory Trail and Christmas concert organised  

by the Singapore American School

2.  Elderly Group
 The Social Work Section conducted ongoing programmes for the elderly. 

Two groups of elderly meet regularly each week. Staff from Social 
Department and volunteers engaged the elderly in indoor and outdoor 
activities, games and yoga.

3. Youth Support Group
 A youth support group named “Project OK” was formed on 25 October 2013 

catering to the needs of the visually impaired youth whose ages range 
from 17-25 years old. All are students from upper secondary up to tertiary 
level. The group meets on a monthly basis, and to-date, has convened 6 
times.
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The Objectives of the Youth Support Group Are:

1.  To provide a platform for mutual support;

2.  To provide information to visually impaired youth so that they stay 
connected with the world;

3.  To provide a platform for visually impaired youth to know their career 
choices in view of their visual impairment, thereby helping them to make 
informed choices;

4.  To empower visually impaired youth so that they can be of service to 
society. 

 The youth benefited from rapport building and bonding. They were also 
given the opportunity for self-expression and to express their preferences 
and plan activities of their choice.
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LOW VISION CLINIC

Low Vision Assessment

Early detection is crucial in preventing and treating eye conditions and diseases. 

Getting a complete eye examination every year is an important step you can take to 
help monitor and protect your vision health.

Due to an increase in the number of aging baby boomers and the growing 
prevalence of such diseases as Diabetes, Myopic Degeneration and Age-Related 
Macular Degeneration (ARMD), many people are at high risk of serious vision loss.

Low vision refers to partial vision loss that cannot be corrected by medical or surgical 
interventions as well as conventional glasses.

A person with low vision has severely reduced visual acuity or contrast sensitivity, a 
significantly obstructed field of vision or all three.

The low vision clinic services are provided by a team of Consultant Optometrists who 
can introduce methods of using remaining vision to help the individual maximize 
daily functioning and adjust to vision loss.

Clinical assessment and prescription of high addition lenses and magnifiers helps a 
low vision person to enhance his or her near and distance visual needs. Training in 
the use of adaptive devices and equipment will also help the user understand and 
maximize the technology to his/her visual needs.

During the year under review, the clinic saw 105 newly referred and reviewed 379 cases.

The top causes of vision impairment for the new referrals were Glaucoma (23.5%), 
Retinitis Pigmentosa (11.5%) and Diabetic Retinopathy (10.6%).

Activities

The clinic has conducted teaching sessions for the last batch of 45 optometry 
undergraduates from Singapore Polytechnic University of Manchester (SPUM) from 
November 2013 to February 2014.

LVC has signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Essilor Vision 
Foundation (EVF) effective January 2014. SAVH acknowledges the Foundation’s 
efforts in providing 100 free raw frames and prescriptive lenses for our low vision 
clients for a period of two years.
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TABLE 1
CAUSES OF VISION IMPAIRMENT IN NEW CASES SEEN IN LOW VISION CLINIC
1ST APRIL 2013 TO 31ST MARCH 2014

DIAGNOSIS NO %

RETINA

Age–Related Macular Degeneration 7 6.7

Central Retinal Vein Occlusion (CRVO) 1 0.9

Cone Rod Dystrophy 2 1.9

Diabetic Retinopathy 11 10.6

Detached Retina 3 2.8

High Myopia 1 0.9

Macular Dystrophy 9 8.6

Myopic Degeneration 2 1.9

Retinitis Pigmentosa 12 11.5

CONGENITAL  ANOMALIES  &   
OTHER PAEDIATRIC EYE CONDITION

Albinism 2 1.9

Congenital Cataracts 2 1.9

Congenital Nystagmus 1 0.9

Retinopathy of prematurity 1 0.9

DISORDERS OF OPTIC NERVE & VISUAL PATHWAYS

Optic Atrophy 3 2.8

Optic Neuropathy 3 2.8

GLAUCOMA 24 23.5

CORNEA DISEASE

Corneal Scarring 4 3.8

OTHERS

Blurred Vision 2 1.9

Encephalitis 1 0.9

Floaters 1 0.9

Glioma 1 0.9

Hemaniopia 3 2.8

Injury to Eyes 3 2.8

Keratoconus 1 0.9

Panuveitis 1 0.9

Pthisis Bulbi 1 0.9

Retinoblastoma 2 1.9

Sub-Retinal Bleeding 1 0.9

GRAND TOTAL 105 100
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TABLE 2
SOURCES OF REFERRAL OF NEW CASES  
TO LOW VISION CLINIC

Referral Sources (Restructured Hospitals): No: %

Changi General Hospital (CGH) 21 20

Khoo Teck Phuat Hospital (KTPH) 11 10

National University Hospital (NUH) 7 6.5

Private Ophthalmologists 19 18.5

Singapore General Hospital (SGH) 4 3.8

Singapore National Eye Centre (SNEC) 28 27.2

Tan Tock Seng Hospital Pte Ltd (TTSH) 13 12.5

Welfare Services / Other Agencies 2 1.5

TOTAL 105 100

TABLE 3
SERVICES RENDERED TO NEW CASES  
AT LOW VISION CLINIC

PRESCRIPTIONS No: %

Given new prescription for glasses 10 9.5

Given new prescription for low vision devices (LVD) 42 40

Not given new prescription, referred to other services 47 45

Consultation only 6 5.5

TOTAL 105 100
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SATELLITE LOW VISION CLINIC

Since 2001, SAVH has been collaborating with the Singapore National Eye Centre
(SNEC) to make its services accessible to a larger number of individuals with vision 
impairment. This collaboration has improved communication between SAVH 
and professionals at SNEC, resulting in better understanding of the condition 
and needs of the referred client.

In FY 2013/14, a total of 61 persons were referred to SAVH through the Satellite 
Low Vision Clinic service. The top three causes of vision impairment in these cases 
were Glaucoma (32%), Retinitis Pigmentosa (19%) and Diabetic Retinopathy 
(14%). 

Causes of Vision Impairment in New Referrals at Satellite Low Vision Clinic

Diagnosis Number of Cases %

Glaucoma 27 32

Retina
Retinitis Pigmentosa 16 19

Diabetic Retinopathy 12 14

Age Related Macular Degeneration 7 8

Rod Cone Dystrophy 1 1

Myopic Degeneration 5 6

Central Retinal Vein Occulsion 1 1

Cone Rod Dystrophy 3 3

Macular Atrophy 1 1

Retinal Neovascularisation 2 2

Cornea
Cornea Scarring 2 2

Cornea Decomposition 1 1

Disorders of Optic Nerve
Optic Atrophy 2 2

Optic Neurophathy 1 1

Others
Uveitis 1 1

Chronic Endophthalmitis 1 1

Total 83 100
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Skills Development Programme (SDP) aims to equip blind and low- vision 
individuals with the necessary skills and knowledge to enable them to be 
employable and remain active in mainstream society.

The SDP focuses on four strategic areas:
l Skills Development
l Blind IT User Support Group
l Job Placement
l Social Business

Skills Development

Personal Training and Development Courses

Clients of SAVH were offered to attend executive training courses for free, as a part 
of their personal training and development. This is offered through one of Faith 
Music Centre’s sister organizations, Faith Management Development Centre, 
which specializes in conducting executive and in-house training to corporate 
and government organizations. Staff of SAVH are offered a 60% discount off the 
public rates to attend its executive trainings.

The following table shows the breakdown of courses conducted from 1 April 
2013 to 31 March 2014

Course No of clients enrolled
IT Skills
Blind IT User Support Group 28
Health
WSQ Hand & Foot Reflexology (First & Second Batch) 14
Massage Workshop 5
Business
Call Centre Training 3
Music
Music Course 3
Musical Keyboard 15
Guitar 6
Ocarina 4
Piano 2
Percussion 3
Singing 2
Hapkido 10
Yoga 8
Others
Story Telling Workshop 1
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Blind IT User Support Group

The Blind IT User Support Group is a programme established to provide IT-related 
training and support to visually impaired clients of SAVH. It was funded by the 
Centre for Enabled Living (CEL), now known as SG Enable, but funding has ended in 
October 2013.

The services of the programme include:

l  Training to visually impaired clients in computer, mobile phones and 
related assistive technology, including Macs and iPhones

l Technical or troubleshooting support for problems with PCs
l Home and office visits to provide training or technical support to clients
l Providing user and troubleshooting support over the phone to clients
l E-newsletter on IT-related news, events, and topics of interest to the clients 

of SAVH

Over the past year, we have 76 clients, including 28 new clients, who received 
training in 61 topics. The programme has also taken 146 calls to answer questions 
relating to IT in general and assistive technology in particular. We also have a special 
IT volunteer, Mr Dev Sharma, who has been providing computer repair services to 
clients. 6 clients have benefited from his services this year.

The programme has a small group of volunteers who provide invaluable assistance 
in training, technical / troubleshooting and general areas. We continue to seek 
suitable volunteers to play various roles in the programme, including those who 
can be trained to become trainers themselves, who can then help train our clients in 
the use of blind-friendly technology, to help the blind community keep up with the 
rest of society in this information age.

We also continue to have the opportunity to take part in the development of 
smartphone apps and devices to help the visually impaired, thanks to various 
individuals, organizations and institutes of learning, and continue to welcome more 
such parties to approach us for similar ventures.

As a result of the existence of this programme, numerous visitors to SAVH have been 
enlightened through on-the-spot demonstrations on how blind people are also able 
to access IT. This is important in promoting public awareness of the abilities of the 
blind, which will go towards enhancing public perception and employability of the
blind and visually impaired.

We thank our funders, clients, volunteers and community partners for their support 
over the past year, and hope to receive their continued support as the programme 
continues to grow and develop.
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l Music Skills Training

About Faith Music Centre

A member of the Social Enterprise Association, Faith Music Centre was set up in 2008 
to equip music learners with music proficiencies and leading them to share the joy 
of music to those less fortunate in old age and children homes in Singapore and 
overseas. Out of the 49 music performances organized in 2013, 36 (74%) of our music 
performances were conducted in either old age or children homes. The remaining 13 
(26%) were mainly corporate and public events.

Music Courses

One of Faith Music Centre’s social missions is to offer visually impaired clients the 
opportunity to learn music for free, through partnership with Singapore Association 
of the Visually Handicapped (SAVH).

The music endeavour was started in late 2010 with the objectives of:

Equipping music proficiencies to visually handicapped clients so that they are able 
to contribute to the society by sharing the joy of music to residents in old age homes;

Having a source of income & allowances for their music works;

Music courses are conducted in two of Faith Music Centre’s operating locations in:

Faith Music Centre @ Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped
49 Toa Payoh Rise Singapore 298104

Faith Music Centre @ Queenstown Community Centre
365 Commonwealth Avenue Singapore149732

The following music courses are available for SAVH Clients:

Keyboard Course
Guitar (Acoustic) Course
Guitar (Bass) Course
Drum Course

First Visually Impaired Band Formed

The first visually impaired band, “VIB” (Visually impaired Band), was officially formed 
in March 2013, made up of visually impaired clients learning different musical 
instruments.
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Together with other visually handicapped learners, VIB played a total of 17 music 
performances in March 2014, together with sighted music learners in other branches 
of Faith Music Centre. Of these 17 performances, 12 were social performances, e.g. 
White Cane Day 2013, and 5 were public/ paid performances e.g. National University 
Hospital Singapore Charity Finale 2013.

The band has also performed to a 1,200 capacity audiences during a Mid-Autumn 
Festival Lunch at Fond Garden in Kallang Theatre.

Staff Recruitment

Faith Music Centre has been recruiting SAVH clients for the position of customer 
service officers since 2011. One client was employed as a customer service officer 
on 14 February 2014.

Another SAVH client will be joining Faith Music Centre as a Piano Instructor on 1 
November 2014 with an upcoming branch in Toa Payoh Lorong 8. 

Job Placement

To get employment into the open market is still the largest challenge for the visually 
handicapped. Employment rate of the blind is also one of the lowest among the 
disabled. As a result, visually impaired persons tend to be at the lower income 
bracket. Though employment opportunities are very hard to come by for the visually 
impaired, we believe that a visually impaired person could be as good as or better 
than a sighted person if given ample opportunity and more time for probation.

In FY2013/2014 a total of 74 clients were placed for gainful employment.

Social Business

The Social Business Unit’s main objective is to provide jobs for the visually handicapped 
and contribute to the Association’s funding requirements. It currently runs three 
business programmes and continues to seek new viable business opportunities. The 
Unit generated $601,716 in revenue for FY2013/14. The breakdown of the revenue 
generated is shown in the table below:



28 SAVH Annual Report 2013/2014

Breakdown of Revenue Generated by Social Business Unit

Social Business Unit’s 
Programmes

Income Generated 
in FY2013/2014

Income Generated 
in FY2012/2013

Mobile Massage Team $435,278 $354,400

Touch Art $29,868 $36,668

Dining in the Dark $136,570 $89,433

Total $601,716 $480,501

l Mobile Massage Team (MMT)

The Mobile Massage Team or MMT has been in operation since 1992. As of 31 
March 2014, MMT has a crew of 41 qualified, visually handicapped masseurs (6 
are Ad hoc Masseurs) who through the use of their highly qualified technique and 
professionalism provide massage services such as head and shoulder massage, foot 
reflexology and full body non-oil massage at SAVH’s massage centre or at corporate 
offices, schools, community centres, government offices and statutory board.

All our masseurs are fully qualified and have the necessary certifications that are 
accredited in accordance with the Singapore Workforce Skills Qualifications system. 
We will continue relentlessly to upgrade our training program to further enhance 
their skills under our Skills Development Programme.

Over the years, our popular MMT has not only built a pool of satisfied, loyal corporate 
customers, who regularly request our massage services, but receive constant 
approbation and praise from our customers, for our masseurs’ signature charisma, 
integrity and professionalism in taking pride in rendering top-notch service.

In 2013, there were bookings from an average of more than 20 regular customers 
per month. They are:

Army Maintenance Base Singapore
Ajunied Community Centre
Anderson Junior College
Changi General Hospital
Comfort Delgro Loyang
Dr Jerry Tan
Japanese Association
KTP Consultants Pte Ltd
Linkedin Singapore Pte Ltd
LSI Logic Singapore Pte Ltd
Oiltanking Singapore Ltd

Coral Ris RC (Pasir Ris Zone 5)
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Salesforce.com Singapore Pte Ltd
SAP Asia
Singapore American School
Singapore National Eye Centre
Turf Club – Kranji
Warren Golf & Country Club
Yee Tee Zone 9 RC
Rosyth School
Muscular Dystrophy Association (Singapore)
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In addition to the regular corporate customers, other external organisations seek us 
out to provide massage services on an ad hoc basis.

In FY2013/2014, the total gross revenue generated by MMT amounted to $544,097. 
After deduction of the 20% administration fee, the net fee is $435,278.

The table below shows the number of customers that MMT served from 1 April 2013 
till 31 March 2014.

CORPORATE WALK-IN (INDIVIDUAL) TOTAL

1,307 2,891 4,198

l Touch Art Programme

Started in 1996, the Touch Art Programme has provided opportunities for clients 
to come out of their homes and interact, allowing them to gain confidence while 
providing them with employment opportunities through the making and selling of 
handicraft items.

This programme has achieved its main objectives. Clients are continuously learning 
new skills that enable them to hand-craft and create some 32-odd aesthetically 
unique and novel items.

Through the public and corporate sale of these merchandise, our clients’ basic needs 
are provided for. The Touch Art Programme is currently supported by 22 clients and 
a group of regular volunteers mentored by our creative and artistic veteran, Ms Katy 
Lim, who runs the Programme.

Without the unswerving dedication of these qualified volunteers, the Touch Art 
Programme would come to a grinding halt. Therefore we would like to express 
our sincere appreciation to all our long-standing and devoted volunteers for their 
unwavering commitment to our clients through thick and thin.

For FY2013/14, the total income generated by Touch Art was $29,868.
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Touch Art products were sold to various organisations including:

l Chinatown Social Enterprise
l Alexandra Health Pte Ltd
l Singapore General Hospital
l Singapore Health Services Pte Ltd
l ITE College East
l ITE College Central
l National Junior College
l Orchid Country Club
l Citi-YMCA Project
l NUS – University Scholars Club
l Nanyang Technological University
l CHIJ Katong Convent
l CHIJ Secondary (TP)

l Loyang Primary School
l Zhonghua Secondary School
l National Council of Social Service
l Media Development Authority
l Standard Chartered Bank
l Lien Centre for Social Innovation
l National Service Resort &  Country Club
l Intellectual Property Office of Singapore 

(IPOS)
l IP Academy Singapore
l Institute of Singapore  

Chartered Accountants (ISCA)
l Zetland-SAVH Scrabble

l Dining In the Dark Programme

The Dining in the Dark (DITD) Programme serves to raise public awareness of the 
challenges the visually impaired face in their daily activities. The Programme also 
aims to raise funds and create long-standing employment opportunities for the 
visually impaired. Under the Programme, diners are served by the visually impaired 
and experience the sensation and challenges of dining in a pitch dark room.

For FY2013/2014, the total income generated by DITD was $136,570.38. A total of 
4,084 diners patronized DITD. These attendees included company employees, staff 
and students of schools and other educational institutions, as well as individuals. 
The Programme has thrived actively on outdoor engagement to companies, schools 
and community clubs, celebrating Earth Hour on 29 March 2014.

The Programme has welcomed 5 visually impaired servers and 2 visually impaired 
kitchen helpers. For this coming FY 2014-2015, effective April 2014 dinner session 
charges have increased from $30 to $38 net.

l	 Sheltered Workshop Programme

Into its sixth year in FY2013/2014, the Sheltered Workshop Programme is run by 
Bizlink Centre at SAVH.

As at 31 March 2014, a total of 25 trainees were in the programme. They were 
mobilized mainly in the run-up to holidays such as Christmas and Chinese New 
Year to pack festive greeting cards along with being proactive and participating 
in Corporate Social Responsibility endeavours like Credit Suisse CSR Event and 
Nanyang Polytechnic Outreach Initiative.
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ACCESSIBILITY PROGRAMME

The Accessibility Programme seeks to assist the visually handicapped lead 
independent lives through the:

l Introduction of assistive devices and technology
l Teaching and use of Braille
l Loan of audio and Braille books

Assistive Device Centre

The Assistive Device Centre (ADC) serves to enhance the lives of VH persons by 
promoting the use of assistive devices in all areas. It offers a comprehensive range 
of products such as mobility white canes, audio, liquid level indicators, talking 
calculators, blood pressure monitors, clocks and watches. The objective is to help 
individuals with visual impairment adjust to their loss of sight, gain independence 
and live life to the fullest.

ADC also assists in purchasing high-end assistive devices such as screen readers, 
scanning and reading solutions, magnification software and braille note takers 
which enable clients to gain equal access to information and their IT needs.

The Centre also sells prescribed optical and electronic magnifiers. These magnifiers
come with different levels of magnification and variety. For example the magnifier 
may be collapsible or handheld with LED lighting while the electronic magnifiers 
may be either portable or desktop units.

Besides catering to SAVH clients, ADC also receives numerous enquiries and purchase
requests from walk-in customers, patients in eye clinics and local hospitals. 

Operational results of ADC

Items FY2013/14 FY2012/13

Cost of Sales $114,397.30 $92,250.92
Number of Items 
Purchased by Clients 3279 2978

Number of Clients Served 717 358

Number of Enquiries 917 790
Amount of Subsidy 
Dispensed $5149.10 $19,834.00
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During FY2013/14, a total of 123 financially needy clients benefitted from the Means 
Testing Scheme when purchasing assistive devices such as white canes and talking 
watches.

As part of our ongoing efforts in providing a more prominent venue to serve our 
clients with the aim of a one-stop service hub, ADC was shifted on 17th February 
2014 to the reception area, the previous known Perkins Room.

We hope this initiative will bring more awareness and provide a convenient platform 
for our clients to purchase their needed devices. ADC will continue to work with 
vendors to display some of their demonstration devices at SAVH for the convenience 
of the VH.

Braille Production Unit (BPU)

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, BPU received a total of 816 transcription
requests from 73 customers, comprising 24 clients, 9 students from Ahmad Ibrahim 
and Bedok South Secondary Schools, and 40 external agencies/parties who were 
interested to provide information in Braille to their associates.

With the help from a pool of dedicated volunteers, these requests translated into 
a total of 32,497 Braille sheets of text, 14,408 sheets of labour-intensive tactile 
diagrams and 6215 Braille aluminium signs.

For the year under review, the National Council of Social Service continued to fund 
half of the Unit’s operating costs, supplemented by an income of S$68,517.70 
generated from the Braille embossing services.

In 2013, BPU embarked on a renewal process that would be ongoing for some time 
to come.

First was the migration exercise from Standard English Braille (SEB) to Unified English
Braille (UEB) by 2017, the year when the Royal National Institute for the Blind (RNIB) 
of the United Kingdom would cease provision of SEB materials and that included the
annual “O” and “A” Levels Examination scripts. The main difference between SEB and
UEB would be the abolition of some contractions with more than one meaning, and 
the standardization of many commonly-used Braille symbols within the literary,
mathematical and scientific realms.

Next was a donation-in-kind from Inner Wheel Club Singapore for BPU to upgrade 
computers, purchase of Braille Display Devices and the relevant software/equipment 
towards Braille conversion. Our Braille Transcribers had a jolly hard time, mixing and
marrying the different components while learning the new codes and “unlearning” 
the obsolete ones!
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Finally, in Jan 2014, BPU welcomed a new addition, Ms. Maryanne Low, to its team 
of existing team players. Proficiency and efficiency in Braille transcription are virtues 
that could only be developed over time, and we hope to begin this process of 
renewal as soon as possible.

Library

SAVH Library continues to serve as an additional resource to Visually Impaired 
individuals who love to read.

The latest collection on the shelves is descriptive movies i.e. movies with audio 
narration. To date we have a collection of 150 movies. Popular titles include Argo, 
Frozen, 12 Years a Slave, Mission Impossible and Les Miserables. Library was able to 
acquire such DVDs when online purchasing was granted.

For the year under review, Library registered 13 new members. Unfortunately we 
have lost 5 faithful borrowers due to illness or death.

The comparatives are as follows:

Library FY2013/14 FY2012/13
Number of Clients Served 133 120
Number of Items Loaned 3783 3600

The Infomag news weekly and Chinese Monthly Magazines are into its second year 
of being recorded into podcasts. Members can download these audio files from the 
Library drop box.

Other less savvy IT subscribers are receiving these audio magazines via thumb 
drives, and can tune in using a portable media player. 

SAVH Library is a one-man operation. But its lack is supplemented by a group of 12 
dedicated volunteers and readers.

Library also expresses its gratitude to NCSS for its continued funding support, and 
Toa Payoh Library for generously providing the bulk loan program.
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ADVOCACY

ROLE OF THE ADVOCACY SUB-COMMITTEE

The special needs of the visually handicapped are undertaken by the Advocacy Sub-
Committee, which strives to highlight the challenges faced by the visually 
handicapped and champion their rights to better accessibility.

ACTIVITIES

During the year under review, the Sub-Committee organized a dialogue session on 
accessibility to gather feedback and gain better understanding of the issues faced 
by the visually handicapped. Most feedback received was valuable and the Sub- 
Committee has been actively engaging with the relevant authorities to resolve 
these issues.

The Code on Accessibility in the Built Environment 2013 was launched on 30 August
2013. The Code conveys the fundamental design and construction requirements to 
the architects and building developers on the basic barrier-free design needs of the 
elderly and persons with limited mobility. With the implementation of this revised 
code, we hope to see new buildings comply with these requirements to make them 
accessible.

Assurty Trusted Solutions launched the OneKey Talking Device in March 2014. With
the OneKey Talking Device, the visually handicapped are now able make transactions
independently and securely online. The consolidation process took several months
when the OneKey Talking Device was developed. This signifies a successful 
collaboration between SAVH and Assurity Trusted Solutions.

We have also liaised with the Land Transport Authority in the area of providing 
audible tactile at pedestrian crossings to assist visually handicapped clients cross 
the roads safely and independently. Their assistance has indeed made the lives of 
the visually handicapped more meaningful.

The issue of Advocacy is a multi-faceted one requiring time and patience for any 
solution or change. The Sub-Committee’s dialogues with organizations have provided 
them with greater awareness and better understanding of the challenges faced by 
the visually handicapped. Some of the feedback has been taken into account when
formulating policies.

The Sub-Committee will continue to work with the relevant authorities to ensure 
that greater attention is paid to the needs of the visually handicapped and that their 
rights remain intact and championed to the last.
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FUNDRAISING

SAVH’s IPC was renewed for 2 years and 9 months from 1 January 2014. This reflects 
the confidence Commissioner of Charities have in our Association.

We had various successful Fundraising events in 2013/2014. This is despite not having 
a Fundraising manager from 13 July 2013 to 31 March 2014. The Fundraising/Public 
Relations/Volunteer Management department also had to face high staff turnover.

Our major fundraising events held are as follows:

EVENTS PERIOD GROSS FUNDS RAISED
SAVH Qin Huai Charity Concert 23 June 2013 $205,205
Donation Draw 2013 12 October 2013 $259,038
Flag Day 2013 21 December 2013 $393,303
ISCA Run 2014 29 March 2014 $100,000
Blind Courage Walk 2 June 2013 $21,000
Clear Vision /Vinci Arts 9 March 2014 $30,000
BCA 27 March 2014 $50,000

We wish to thank all our donors, sponsors, Executive Committee members and staff
who have helped in our fund raising events.

A special mention goes out to Madam Halimah Yacob, Speaker of Parliament for
gracing ISCA Run 2014 as Guest-of-Honour, Mr Chan Chun Sing, Minister for Social
and Family Development, Dr Tony Ho and Mr Juan Ramon Jiminez for their support
and attendance at Clearvision/Vinci Art Event.

The following were the major donors for this financial year:

l	Wilmar International Ltd 
l	Leeward Pacific Pte Ltd
l	SymAsia Singapore Fund
l	BGC Partners (Singapore) Ltd
l	Estate of Phirozshaw Maneckji Framroz Deceased
l	Estate of Navroji Rustamji Mistri Deceased
l	Mr Chua Beng Ee
l	Mdm Lee Ying
l	Wee Aik Koon Pte Ltd
l	President’s Challenge
l	Tote Board
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PUBLIC RELATIONS & VOLUNTEER

Public Relations

Public education and outreach activities are continual efforts by SAVH to engage the 
public and build awareness while generating interest in the Association’s services 
and activities along with educating the general public on vision impairment.

For FY2013/14, SAVH leveraged on its website and Facebook to engage the public 
and generate buzz for its events and activities, particularly ‘Run for Vision’, a new 
initiative started by our own Human Resource executive, Lim Wei Yee.

Along with his ‘I Love SAVH’ site, our Facebook page garnered a record number of likes, 
owing to a fresh and new approach of reporting events, in full and vibrant Technicolor, 
in order to engage the youth and media-savvy audiences.

SAVH also promoted its activities and events through other organisations’ online 
platforms such as Livenabled FB, SALT FB and SG Cares bulletin board.

Besides engaging social media, SAVH also tapped on the SAVH newsletter “Insight”, 
annual report and various corporate brochures and collaterals to reach out to the public.

In addition to this, SAVH went full-tilt in marketing its latest product ‘Adopt-a-Dolphin’, 
online, as well as at its premises and major fundraising events.

SAVH featured largely in the media-eye owing to a number of television broadcasts. We 
were highlighted in an episode of ‘On the Red Dot’, and separately on ‘It Figures’, along 
with a popular drama series, ‘World at Your Feet’. As a collective impact, this thrust SAVH 
into the forefront, and served as an effective platform to build awareness to the plight 
of the blind.

Early this year we were honoured to be invited to the launch of the Presidents Challenge 
2014, held at Changi City Point, opened by none other than President Tony Tan. In his 
opening speech the President stressed the need for the corporate sector to harness their 
skills and give selflessly to the less fortunate. It was a pivotal opportunity for SAVH to air 
its corporate video to a crowded throng of entrepreneurs and key civilservants.

During the last quarter of the financial year, SAVH’s PR arm has worked tirelessly in 
championing the needs of the visually impaired through a multitude of outreach 
initiatives, both in the private and public sectors.

SAVH has also opened its doors to several institutes of open learning and tertiary 
education, in an effort to engage and attract youth in volunteering from an early age 
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and build empathy for the less fortunate, through interaction with clients particularly 
our sheltered workshop trainees, many of whom touched the heart of many a young 
person.

Some other noteworthy events on our calendar were:-

Billiards champion Peter Gilchrist and the Singapore Sports Council dropped by for a 
visit of SAVH operations, and are considering a billiard involvement with clients in time 
to come.

Blind Courage Walk was conducted at MacRitchie Reservoir this year making for a novel 
and refreshing change, and registering a record number of volunteers and clients alike.

Singapore Pools, in a bid to enrich community life, has come on-board to help in the 
sale of our yearly charity donation draw ticket booklets. This has proved an added boon 
owing to the larger volume of printed tickets this round in a bid to raise $200,000.

Volunteers

Volunteers are an integral part of SAVH. In FY2013/14, 90 individuals signed up as 
volunteers with SAVH. Several schools and interested public contacted SAVH to perform 
voluntary service for the Association.

The Singapore American School, Raffles Institution, Ngee Ann Polytechnic and ITE West 
(Chua Chu Kang), have been instrumental in helping to shape the landscape insofar as 
building awareness amongst the younger generation.

Thanks to their collective volunteering efforts and fundraising endeavours, the benefits 
have been two-fold; profitable and meaningful for us, and character-building for them.

For instance the trainees at sheltered workshop and many of SAVH client pool have been 
befriended by said volunteers over a period of time, through Touch-art gallery,
outings and other social events.

In addition BPU and library have seen a steady stream of long-serving and regular 
volunteers pass through their portals. These worthy individuals have selflessly given of 
their time from oftentimes hectic personal schedules.

Thanks to the hard-work and dedication of familiar volunteers like Siew Tiat and 
Margaret, the front garden has become resplendent with all manner of exotic blooms, 
lovingly cultivated so that the visually-impaired are able to appreciate an outdoor 
environment redolent in floral fragrance. They too have worked tirelessly in maintaining 
the surrounding outdoor area, clearing away unwanted foliage, brambles and shrubbery
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For all the time so caringly given up, for each kind word, thought and gesture that 
has gone a long way towards warming a client’s heart and for all the generosity and 
open charity exhibited by one and all of our volunteers, we at SAVH wish to extend our 
heartfelt thanks. This type of consummate community service is indeed heartwarming 
in the extreme.

Last but not least we would like to highlight a few key PR Ventures for FY2013/14:
 
Launch of Singapore’s Third Series Coins.
When Singapore’s Third Series Coins was launched in mid-2013, SAVH was actively 
working with the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) to assist clients to identify and 
differentiate the new coins.

Officials from MAS consulted SAVH on the features built into the design of the coins. This 
is to ensure that VH persons can easily recognize the different denominations.

With such timely collaboration, the VH were able to adapt rapidly to the new coin launch, 
for easier and more accurate identification of the new coinage.

We would like to thank the staff of MAS for taking the time and trouble to incorporate 
the views of the VH in an undertaking of national moment.
 
Visit by Malaysian Association for the Blind (MAB).
SAVH also welcomed a visit from the staff of the Social Club of Malaysian Association for 
the Blind, who came down to share and exchange ideas on a broad range of common 
interests and issues facing the VH community. They were hosted to a luncheon by us, 
followed by a musical entertainment courtesy of Mr. Steven Yeo.

White Cane Day 2013
Our White Cane Day was a resounding success as usual, with blind and VH sharing 
fellowship and goodwill with their sighted comrades. This was once again conducted at 
SAVH premises, in a food-cum-funfair setting.

A novel addition was a visit by some clients with the help of volunteers to Lions Home 
for the Elderly. They brought cheer to the seniors through a befriending session that 
included a sing-along and simple tea.

Star Cruise Outing
Last but not least, benevolent volunteers Ms. Catherine Khoo and associates hosted a 
fun-packed and memorable excursion aboard star cruises; our clients got to enjoy not 
simply a harbour day plus wonderful eats, but were conducted about the ship, and given 
a comprehensive tour of ship-board activities.
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WHITE CANE CLUB       
 
  
Preamble
         
The White Cane Club (WCC) serves as a feedback organ of SAVH, on matters relating 
to visually handicapped (VH) persons, organizes social, educational and recreational 
activities for its members and provides leadership training.     
     
47th Annual General Meeting         
 
The 47th Annual General Meeting of the White Cane Club was held on Saturday, 
20th July 2013 at 3:10pm at the Sutherland Hall (Lighthouse School).   
       
16 members attended the meeting. There were four nominations, namely  
Mr Rajkumar s/o Muthukumar, Mr Tay Shaw Ming Francis, Mdm Ng Swee Kuen and 
Mr Lau Chin Hee Andrew.
         
Main Committee FY2013/14

Name Position

Mr Goh Yiu Huat Chairman

Mr Tay Shaw Ming, Francis Honorary Treasurer

Mr Chiang Wee Lip Honorary Secretary

Mdm Ng Swee Kuen Chairperson, Ad Hoc Committee

Mr Rajkumar s/o Muthukumar Member

Mr Lau Chin Hee, Andrew Honorary Secretary 
(effective 10 January 2014)

Objectives
        
The key objectives of the White Cane Club are:       
   
1.  To complement the Association in providing for the educational, social and 

recreational needs of VH members        
  

2. To contribute constructive recommendations to the Association for the 
enhancement of welfare of (VH) members.       
   

3.         To assist the Association in identifying and nurturing potential leaders for the 
Club and the Association.         
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Membership          

There were 12 new members for the year under review.  3 members were reinstated. 
2 members passed away. 11 members were in arrears. As at 31st March 2014, the 
membership strength stood at 126, an increase of 2 over the previous year. 
 
Conclusion
    
For the financial year 2013/14, the Club was able to organize one activity per month 
for most of the time. These activities were supported by our Club members, and 
assisted by our dedicated volunteers.
         
The Club Committee, though few in number, was able to carry on its functions as 
usual. We hope to attract more Club members to our activities and to join the WCC 
Committee in the future for the overall improvement of the VH.

Prepared by          
Lau Chin Hee, Andrew          
Acting Hon Secretary, WCC         
 
White Cane Club Activities 2013/14

Activities Date VH members Volunteers
Local Farms Tour 13  April 2013 23 20
Cookery Class 11  May 2013 6 6
Hi Tea Session 27  July 2013 22 17
Cookery Class 07  Sept 2013 9 8
WCC Dinner Function 30  Nov 2013 32 33
CNY Event 08  Feb 2014 20 15
Local Farm Tour 22  Mar 2014 22 12

Annual Dinner Function

The event attracted 32 VH and 33 volunteers. The participants enjoyed the food, fun 
and games. We received donation from both the VH and sighted volunteers toward 
the buying of household items, used for games and lucky draw prizes. The song 
items provided by our VH talents enhanced the party atmosphere. On the whole, it 
was a success.          

Lunar New Year 2014
         
The White Cane Club organized the Lunar New Year function on Saturday, 8 February 
2014 at the workshop premises. The event was co-sponsored by a few VH and 
volunteers. The participants need not pay for the activity, thanks to the donors.
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Besides the halal buffet, we had the traditional; “Yu Sheng”, to usher in the ‘Year of the 
Horse’. Here was a segment where the participants were tested on their knowledge 
with regards to the horse. The VH received red packets while all participants got 
mandarin oranges for prosperity.
     
Day Trip
         
For the year under review, the Ad Hoc Committee organized 2 day trips. In terms of 
education, the participants visited the goat farm, the mushroom farm and the frog 
farm.

The participants also had the chance to buy farm products. The bus took them to 
the “buy and buy” stalls where food, confectionary and preserved food items were 
sold.

The participants enjoyed themselves throughout the outing.

Victory Family Service Centre Activities 

Activities Date VH members
Afternoon Tea session 24 Aug 2013 22
Afternoon Tea session 22 Feb 2014 20

Hair Cut Sessions 
         
An average of 15 WCC members attended each session.
Schedule: 7 April 2013, 2 June 2013, 4 August 2013, 6 October 2013, 4 December 
2013. 19 January 2014 and 2 March 2014

We would like to express our thanks and gratitude to our volunteer hairdressers, 
namely, Ms Toh, Yvonne, Ms Goh, Brenda and Ms Mak, Susan for the above hair-cut 
sessions. The Club also presented tokens of appreciation to them for their voluntary
service.  
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Executive Committee          
    
Mr Phillip Lee Soo Hoon - President  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )
Mr Tan Guan Heng - Vice-President  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )
Ms Chua Swee Keow - Vice-President  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )
Mr Danny Chia Choon Guan - Honorary Secretary  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )
Mr Victor Chen Kah Keng - Honorary Treasurer  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )  
Mr Albert Ang Hong Woo - Committee Member  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )
Mr Cheok Cheng Ann - Committee Member  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )  
Mr Khoo Kong Ngian - Committee Member  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )
Mr Alfred Shee Peng Fatt - Committee Member  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 ) 
Mr Adrian Tan Gim Hai - Committee Member  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 ) 
Mr John Ting Kang Chung - Committee Member  (Appointed on 31 August 2013 )  
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Mr Lau Kin Harn - Committee Member  (Appointed on 31 October 2013 )  
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STATEMENT BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

We, Phillip Lee Soo Hoon, Chua Swee Keow, and Victor Chen Kah Keng, hereby state that, in the 
opinion of the Executive Committee,

(a) the accompanying statement of financial position, statement of financial activities, and 
statement of cash flows together with notes thereto are drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Charities Act, Cap 37, the Societies Act Cap 311 and Singapore Financial 
Report Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Singapore Asso-
ciation of the Visually Handicapped (the “Association”) as at 31 March 2014 and the state-
ment of financial activities, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows of 
the Association for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Association 
will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Executive Committee approved and authorised the issue of these financial statements.
  
On behalf of the Executive Committee

Phillip Lee Soo Hoon          
President

Chua Swee Keow          
Vice President 

Victor Chen Kah Keng          
Honorary Treasurer          
          
Singapore          
          
21 July 2014          
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Association of the Visu-
ally Handicapped (the “Association”) which comprise  the statement of financial position of the 
Association as at 31 March 2014, the statement of financial activities, statement of changes in 
fund and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 4 to 44.

Executive Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act, Cap 37, the Societies Act Cap 311 
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of in-
ternal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguard-
ed against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised 
and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair statement of 
financial position and statement of financial activities and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judge-
ment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions 
of the Charities Act, Cap 37, the Societies Act, Cap. 311 and Singapore Financial Reporting Stan-
dards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association as at 31 March 
2014 and the results, changes in fund and cash flows of the Association for the financial year 
ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Associa-
tion have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

During the course of our audit, nothing came to our notice that caused us to believe that:

(a) the Association did not comply with the requirements of Regulation 15(1) of the Charities 
Act, Cap 37 (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations 2007 which states that the to-
tal fund-raising and sponsorship expenses of the Federation shall not exceed 30% of the 
total gross receipts from fund-raising and sponsorships for that financial year;

(b) the donation monies have not been used in accordance with the objectives of the Associ-
ation

Robin Chia & Co
Public Accountants and 
Chartered Accountants      

Singapore

21 July 2014 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

(In Singapore Dollars)
Note 2014 2013 2012 

$ $ $ 
    Restated #   Restated #

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  141,305  125,227  124,310 
Financial assets, available-for-sale 5  1,000  1,000  1,000 
Total non-current assets  142,305  126,227  125,310 

Current assets
Other receivables                                 6  953,331  447,152  159,058 
Cash and cash equivalents                                         7  5,455,721  4,545,965  3,969,432 
Inventories 8  99,702  96,850  88,737 
Total current assets  6,508,754  5,089,967  4,217,227 

TOTAL ASSETS  6,651,059  5,216,194  4,342,537 

FUNDS AND LIABILITY
Funds 
Accumulated Funds  4,734,157  3,714,384  3,200,143 
Building Fund 9  1,072,344  330,000  - 
CEL SEED Fund 10  -  29,820  39,422 
Community Project Fund 11  20,866  20,866  8,066 
Designated Donation Fund 12  895,010  781,012  546,405 
Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund 13  98,932  98,020  111,100 
ICAP Fund (SDP)  -  -  43,983 
Mobile Massage Fund 14  74,126  46,378  57,155 
President’s Challenge Fund 15  1,591  300,042  300,042 
Scholarship and Training Reserve Fund 16  23,816  23,816  23,816 
Staff Welfare Fund 17  1,286  1,386  1,386 
Tan Chay Bing Education Fund 18  57,900  50,100  40,100 
The Estate of Renee Chew Fund 19  19,564  21,650  35,168 
Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme Fund 20  9,300  12,900  19,900 
White Cane Club Project Fund 21  24,382  14,407  17,682 
Braille Production Unit Programme Fund 22  (87,722)  (58,644)  (31,095)
Library Programme Fund 23  (22,593)  (41,665)  (25,033)
Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund 24  (275,351)  (247,989)  (222,560)
Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund 25  (148,653)  (69,673)  9,593 
Total funds  6,498,955  5,026,810  4,175,273 

Current liability
Other payables                                      26  152,104  189,384  167,264 

TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITY  6,651,059  5,216,194  4,342,537 

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

(In Singapore Dollars)
Note 2014 2013 

$ $ 
Restated #

Incoming resources 
Amortisation of donated assets  27,194  36,900 
Community project income  4,800  - 
Donations 27  605,980  372,578 
Facilities  5,480  7,572 
Fund raising 28  1,011,945  1,053,882 
Grants and fundings 29  541,021  515,122 
Membership fees  1,183  1,110 
Miscellaneous income 30  318,113  24,738 
Sales and services 32  946,832  768,614 
Programme fees  6,992  4,991 
Other income 31  104,134  61,858 
Total income resources  3,573,674  2,847,365 

Resources expended
Charitable activities 33  2,596,963  1,934,800 
Fund raising expenses 28  61,189  103,777 
Other operating and administrative expenses 34  414,314  363,504 
Total resources expended  3,072,466  2,402,081 

Surplus for the year  501,208  445,284 
Add/ (Less): Transfer from/ (to)
Braille Production Unit Programme Fund  31,241  27,550 
CEL SEED Fund  32,852  - 
Designated Donation Fund  (63,981)  (189,210)
Library Programme Fund  50,336  16,632 
Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund  27,362  25,428 
Mobile Massage Fund  (27,748)  10,777 
President’s Challenge Fund  298,451  - 
Skills Development Programme  -  214,955 
Staff Welfare Fund  (500)  - 
Tan Chay Bing Education Fund  42,200  40,000 
The Estate of Renee Chew Fund  2,086  6,668 
Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme Fund  3,600  7,000 
Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund  107,393  79,266 
White Cane Club Project Fund  (9,975)  3,275 

 493,317  242,341 

Net surplus transfer to Accumulated Funds  994,525  687,625 

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

(In Singapore Dollars)
Note 2014 2013 

                 $                   $  
Restated #

Balance at beginning of financial year 41  3,714,384  3,200,143 
Net surplus for the financial year 41  994,525  687,625 
Less:  Transfer of funds
           Motor Vehicle and Van Maintenance Fund  -  (11,030)
           Office Equipment Fund  -  (685)
           Specific Assistance Fund  -  (40,567)
           ICAP Fund (SDP)  -  (121,102)
           Building Fund 9  23,300  - 
           CEL SEED Fund 10  1,948  - 
Balance at end of financial year  4,734,157  3,714,384 

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

(In Singapore Dollars)
Note 2014 2013 

                 $                   $  
Restated #

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus for the financial year 41  994,525  687,625 
Adjustments for:
  Amortisation of donated assets  (27,194)  (36,900)
  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  37,025  45,148 
  Loss on disposal of plant and equipment  2  14 
  Dividend income  (414)  (442)
  Interest income  (14,634)  (29,406)
Operating surplus before working capital changes  989,310  666,039 
  Inventory  (2,852)  (8,113)
  Other receivables  (506,179)  (288,094)
  Other payables  (37,280)  22,120 
Cash generated from operations  442,999  391,952 
  Dividend received  414  442 
  Interest received  14,634  29,406 
Cash generated from operating activities  458,047  421,800 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (24,999)  (22,259)
Cash used for investing activities  (24,999)  (22,259)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Net funds increased during the year 41  476,708  176,992 
Cash generated from financing activities  476,708  176,992 

.
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  909,756  576,533 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  4,545,965  3,969,432 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7  5,455,721  4,545,965 

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2014

1. GENERAL            
   
 Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped (the “Association”) is established and registered 

in Singapore under the Societies Act, Cap.31, Charities Act, Cap.37 and Charities (Institutions of a 
Public Characters) Regulations. The registered office and principal place of business is situated at 47 
Toa Payoh Rise, Singapore 298104.

 The National Council of Social Service (“NCSS”) approved the association’s application for 
renewal of IPC status (General Fund) from 1 January 2014 to 30 September 2016 for the following 
programmes:

 • Social Work Department
 • Low Vision Clinic
 • Satellite Low Vision Clinic
 • Vision Rehabilitation Programme
 • Skills Development Programme
 • Sheltered Workshop
 • Accessibility Programme
 • Mobile Massage Team
 • White Cane Club           

 
 The objectives of the Association are:          
           

a) to serve as an Association for the visually handicapped;  
b) to promote the welfare of the visually handicapped in the Republic of Singapore;
c) to facilitate and encourage greater participation of the visually handicapped in the 

administration of their affairs and activities and in the management of the Association;
d) to work towards the abolition of architectural, attitudinal, social, cultural, educational, 

employment and any other barriers that prevent the total integration and equal treatment of 
the visually handicapped in the community;

e) to encourage eye-care and safety and research in the prevention and cure of blindness and 
related disease; and

f) to do any or all such other things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above 
objects and shall include the appeal for funds in aid of visually handicapped.

 The Low Vision Clinic, Vision Rehabilitation Programme, Braille Production Unit and Library are funded 
by NCSS and Tote Board and  for a total amount of $520,686 (2013: $500,016)

        
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES     
 
 2.1  Basis of preparation          

    
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting 

Standards (“FRS’). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
     
 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise 
its judgement in the process of applying the Association’s accounting policies. It also requires the 
use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of 
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

 The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars which is the Association’s functional 
currency.

  
 2.2 Changes in accounting policies         

     
  In the current financial year, the Association has adopted all the new and revised FRSs and 

Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 April 2013.

 The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the Association’s 
accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior 
years.        

 
 2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective        

      
 Below is the mandatory standard, amendment and interpretation to existing standards that have 

been published, and are relevant for the Association’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 
April  2013 or later periods and which the Association has not adopted:     
       

          Effective for annual periods
 Description        beginning or after 1 

January 2014
 Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities                 

 The directors expect that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above will have no 
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application except for the 
following:            
    

 The Amendments to FRS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

 The amendments to FRS 32 clarify that rights of set-off must not only be legally enforceable in 
the normal course of business, but must also not be contingent on a future event and must be 
enforceable in the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of all the counterparties to the contract. The 
Company currently offset certain balances with the same counterparty as the Company has legal 
rights to set off the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
          
 2.4 Property, plant and equipment  
       
 The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that 

future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Association; and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. The cost of an item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase 
price; any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; the initial estimate of 
the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. These 
include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct the plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. The costs of day-to-day servicing of the plant 
and equipment are recognised in the statement of financial activities as incurred.

              
 Plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial recognition at cost less 

any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method to write off the cost of the asset over its estimated useful life. The 
estimated useful lives of the plant and equipment are as follows:

 

 Leasehold buildings   - 20 years
 Furniture, fittings and equipment   - 5 to 10 years
 Motor vehicles   - 5 years
 Renovation   - 10 years   
     
 Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognized 

is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Association and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably.

 The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. The effects of any 
revision are recognized in profit or loss when the changes arise.

 On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal 
proceeds and its carrying amount is included in the profit or loss. Any amount in revaluation reserve 
relating to that asset is transferred to retained profits directly upon disposal of that asset.

 2.5 Inventories           
   

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value on the first-in-first-out basis.

 Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.  Net realisable value represents the estimated 
net selling price.       
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
          
 2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets        

      
 The Association assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 
the Association makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

 An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are 
discounted to their present value.

 Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down 
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities 
except for assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In this case 
the impairment is also recognised in equity up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

 An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates  used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment  loss  was recognised. If that is the case, 
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount 
cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 
statement of financial activities unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the 
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

 2.7 Financial assets 

 Financial assets are recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the 
Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  
 

 When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of 
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

 A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset 
has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has been 
recognised directly in equity is recognised in the statement of financial position.   
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
 
 2.7 Financial assets (Cont’d)  

 All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade 
date i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases 
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period 
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.   
         

 Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the following 
four categories under FRS 39 is as follows:

 (a) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss     
 

  As at year end date, there were no financial assets classified in this category.

 (b) Available-for-sale financial assets         
     

  Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are not classified in any of the other 
categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. 
Any gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial asset are recognised directly in the 
fair value adjustment reserve in equity, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in the income 
statement. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income 
statement when the financial asset is derecognised.

 Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at 
cost less impairment loss.          
  

 (c) Loans and receivables

 Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are 
classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through 
the amortisation process.          
 

 (d) Held-to-maturity financial assets        
 

  As at year end date, there were no financial assets classified in this category.   
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
          
 2.8 Impairment of financial assets         

  
 The Association assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial 

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when 
such evidence exists.   

          
 (a)  Assets carried at amortised cost         

     
 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost 

has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of financial activities.  
  

               
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced 
directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the 
allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the financial asset.

 To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has 
been incurred, the Association considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant 
financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not 
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in the profit or 
loss.           

 
 (b)  Assets carried at cost          

     
 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at cost has been 

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return 
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
  
 2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)        

      
 (c)  Available-for-sale financial assets         

     
 In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of impairment 

include (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, (ii) information about significant 
changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or 
legal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the cost of the investment in 
equity instrument may not be recovered; and (iii) a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 
of the investment below its costs. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the 
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original 
cost.

 If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between 
its cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any 
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. 
Reversals of impairment losses in respect of debts instruments are recognised in profit or loss if the 
increase in fair value of the debt instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after 
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of financial activities.    
            

 2.9 Cash and cash equivalents         
     

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash with banks, short term deposits and highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.          
 

 2.10 Other payables           
   

 Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method.          
  

 2.11  Donation in kind          
    

 A donation in kind is included in the statement of financial activities based on an estimate of the 
fair value at the date of the receipt of the donation of a non-monetary asset or the grant for the 
right to the monetary asset. The donation is recognised if the amount of the donation in kind can 
be measured reliably and there is no uncertainty that it will be received.    
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
           
 2.12 Capital donation          

    
 Donations received for the purchase of capital assets are accounted for in the respective Capital Fund 

Accounts. Amount utilised for purchase fixed assets are transferred to the Deferral Capital Donations 
account and amortised over the useful lives of the related assets to match the depreciation of the 
assets purchased with the related donations.

          
 2.13 Funds            

  
 Unrestricted Funds           
    
 Funds of the Association comprise mainly the Accumulated Funds, which are unrestricted. These 

funds are expendable at the discretion of the Executive Committee in furtherance of the Association’s 
objectives.           

 
 2.14 Revenue             

  
 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Association and the revenue can be reliably measured and the following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognised:

 (a) Grants from National Council of Social Service (“NCSS”) and  Tote Board   

 NCSS and  Tote Board Grants are for the Low Vision Clinic, Vision Rehabilitation Programme, Braille 
Production Unit and Library. They are recognised upon receipt on quarterly basis.   
         

 (b) Donations           
   

 Donations are recognised in the statement of financial activities when they have been received. 
Donation-in-kind are recognised when the fair value of the assets received can be reasonably 
ascertained.

      
 (c) Fund raising           

   
 Revenue from special event is recognised when the event takes place. 

 (d) Sale of Braille printing          
    

 Revenue from sale of Braille printing is recognised when the Braille printing has been delivered 
to the customers and the customers have accepted the printing, and collection of the related 
receivables is reasonably assured. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
          
 2.14 Revenue (Cont’d)           

  
 (e) Interest income           

  
 Interest income from bank deposits and bonds is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into 

account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable on an effective yield 
method.

 Other miscellaneous income is recognised upon receipt.
     
 2.15 Employee benefits          

    
 (a) Pensions obligations          

    
 The Association contributes to the Central Provident Fund (‘CPF’), which is a pension 

contribution plan regulated and managed by the Singapore Government. The Association’s 
CPF contributions which apply to employees, are charged to the statement of financial 
activities in the period to which the contributions relate.        
  

 
 (b) Employee leave entitlement         

     
 Employee entitlement to annual leave is recognised when they accrue to employees only. 

A provision is made for the estimated liability for unconsumed leave as a result of services 
rendered by the employees up to the reporting date.     
 

 2.16 Functional currency          
    

 The functional currency of the Association is Singapore Dollar. As the receipts and payments of the 
Society are predominantly denominated in Singapore Dollar, the Executive Committee is of the 
opinion that the Singapore Dollar reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and 
circumstances relevant to the Association.

      
 2.17 Operating leases          

    
 Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained 

by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are taken to the income statement on a straight-line basis over 
the period of the lease.

 
 When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required 

to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the financial year in which 
termination takes place.          
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)     
   
 2.18 Related parties          

 
 A related party is defined as follows:        
 

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Association if that person 
has control or joint control over the Association, has significant influence over the Association 
or is a governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel of the 
Association or of a parent of the Association.       
     

(b) An entity is related to the Association if any of the following conditions applies:   
           
(i) The entity and the Association are members of the same group (which means that each 

parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) The entity is an associate or joint venture of the Association (or an associate or joint 
venture of a member of a group of which Association is a member) and vice versa;

(iii) Both entities are joint venture of the same third party;

(iv) The entity is a joint venture of a third party and the Association is an associate of the 
third entity and vice versa;

(v) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and

(vi) A person identified in (a) has significant influence over the entity or is a governing board 
member, trustee or member of the key management personnel of the entity or of a 
parent of the entity. 

               
        

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

 Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the 
financial statements. They affect the application of the Association’s accounting policies, reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an 
on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.     
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)    
 

 3.1 Judgements made in applying accounting policies      
        

 The Executive Committee is of the view that there are no critical judgements involved that will have 
a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty        
      

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. The 
Executive Committee estimates the useful lives of these plant and equipment to be 5 to 20 years. 
The carrying amount of the Association’s property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2014 was 
$141,305 (2013: $125,227). Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments 
could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future 
depreciation charges could be revised.
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5. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted shares, at cost  1,000  1,000 

The unquoted available -for-sale investment is held for long-term strategic purposes in accordance 
with the Association’s plans.

Unquoted equity investments offer the Association opportunity for return through dividend. 
Unquoted shares stated at cost have no market prices and the fair value cannot be reliably measured 
using valuation techniques. 

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Other debtors  933,764  425,542 
Deposit  14,870  15,630 
Interest receivable  -  897 
Prepayment  4,697  5,083 

 953,331  447,152 

Other receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated. 
At the year end date, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair 
values. Other receivables at year-end date are denominated in Singapore Dollars. 
    

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Cash in hand  4,300  6,453 
Cash at bank  5,451,421  2,389,512 
Fixed deposits  -  2,150,000 

 5,455,721  4,545,965 

The fixed deposit bears interest of fixed deposits range from 0.50% to 2.00% (2013: 0.50% to 2.00%) 
per annum.      

Cash and cash equivalents at year-end date are denominated in Singapore Dollars.  
     

8. INVENTORIES   

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Merchandise, at cost  99,702  96,850 

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales” amounts to $134,352 
(2013:$122,209)    
      



65SAVH Annual Report 2013/2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2014

9. BUILDING FUND    

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  330,000  330,000 
Add:  Funds received during the year  765,644  - 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (23,300)  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  1,072,344  330,000 

Building Fund is used to pay for new building expenses, expenses relating to rebuilding an extension 
of existing building and renovation, retrofitting and upkeep expenses of existing building.  
   

10. CEL SEED FUND    

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  29,820  39,422 
Add:  Fund received during the year  4,980  40,268 
Less:  Fund transfer to accumulated funds  (1,948)  (35,030)
           Expenses during the year  (32,852)  (14,840)
Balance at the end of the financial year  -  29,820 

This fund is sponsored by the Centre for Enabled Living (Sustainable Enhancement for Eldercare 
and Disability Services). It is utilised for purchase of equipment, payment of staff and expenses 
incurred for our “Blind IT User Support Group” programme.     
 

11. COMMUNITY PROJECT FUND      

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  20,866  8,066 
Add:  Funds received during the year  -  12,800 
Less:  Expenses during the year  -  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  20,866  20,866 

This fund is used for expenses incurred in community projects.     
 

12. DESIGNATED DONATION FUND
2014 2013 

Note                     $                      $  

Assistive Devices Fund 12a  157,479  149,403 
Autobiography Therapy Fund 12b  10,000  - 
Braille Fund 12c  -  1,963 
Car Wash Project Fund 12d  11,330  4,799 
Developmental Vision Programme Fund 12e  22,232  22,232 
Dining in the Dark Fund 12f  152,063  92,255 
Education & Training Fund 12g  21,855  21,855 
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 12. DESIGNATED DONATION FUND (Cont’d) 

Elderly Activity Fund 12h  2,707  2,789 
IT Training and Related Fund 12i  20,622  20,622 
Library Fund 12j  -  68,730 
Public Education Fund 12k  15,839  15,839 
Recreational Therapy Fund 12l  6,042  6,042 
Rehabilitation Fund 12m  -  29,552 
SAVH Scholarship Fund 12n  50,000  50,000 
Skills Training Fund 12o  102,470  98,077 
White Cane Day Fund 12p  109,514  103,048 
Baking Fund 12q  4,001  3,806 
Home Care Programme fund 12r  208,856  90,000 

 895,010  781,012 
          

12a. Assistive Devices Fund         

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  149,403  158,719 
Add:  Income during the year  134,558  110,980 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (126,482)  (117,597)
           Cost of equipment  -  (2,699)
Balance at the end of the financial year  157,479  149,403 

Assistive Devices Fund is used for purchase of stocks of assistive devices, payment for repair services 
and maintenance contracts of the ADC.
        

12b. Autobiography Therapy Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Fund received during the year  10,000  - 

This fund aims to assist clients to relate and write about their personal experiences and encounters 
in a group setting as a means to provide encouragement to each other and also others. Through this, 
it acts as a therapy for the writers to understand their needs, aspirations as well as their limitations. 
It further assists them to enhance their living and moderate their expectations.

  
12c. Braille Fund    

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  1,963  1,963 
Add:  Fund received during the year  200  - 
Less:  Fund transfer to Braille Production Unit Programme Fund  (2,163)  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  -  1,963 
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12c. Braille Fund (Cont’d)

Braille Fund is used for purchase of equipment such as computers, software, printers, embossers, 
spare parts, photocopiers and any other equipment needed by BPU to deliver its services.  
 

12d. Car Wash Project Fund 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  4,799  1,289 
Add:  Income during the year  6,815  3,972 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (284)  (462)
Balance at the end of the financial year  11,330  4,799 

Car Wash Project Fund is established to develop employable skills in our clients as well as to generate 
extra income for them. This fund is mainly used for purchases of car washing items. 
     

12e. Developmental Vision Programme Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year  22,232  22,232 

Developmental Vision Programme Fund is used for an early intervention programme set up for 
visually impaired children from age 1-6. Parents or caregivers will be given relevant training or 
resource material in order for them to foster the development of these children. The fund can also 
be used for any purpose that leads to helping these young children learn and develop cognitively, 
socially, emotionally and physically.

12f. Dining in the Dark Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  92,255  57,266 
Add:  Income during the year  113,555  91,971 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (53,747)  (52,511)
           Cost of equipment  -  (4,471)
Balance at the end of the financial year  152,063  92,255 

Dining in the Dark Fund is used to generate public awareness about vision impairment, and for 
sighted persons to better appreciate the skills and confidence required to cope in the dark. It 
also creates an opportunity for fund raising to cover the cost of the programme and generates 
allowances for trainees.  
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12g. Education and Training Fund 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year  21,855  21,855 

Education and Training Fund is used to subsidise in part or in full the education and training needs 
of visually impaired clients and children of visually impaired parents. It is not restricted to academic 
studies only, but is available also for training courses for visually impaired adults so that they can 
earn a living.

12h. Elderly Activity Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  2,789  3,075 
Add:  Income during the year  200  - 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (282)  (286)
Balance at the end of the financial year  2,707  2,789 

Elderly Activity Fund is used for any of the activities held within or outside the Association that 
are organised for the elderly. The activities are organised to promote physical health and social 
interaction among the elderly clients of the Association.      
     

12i. IT Training and Related Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year  20,622  20,622 

IT Training and Related Fund is used to help clients develop themselves through IT training and 
related skills. It is also used for payment of the necessary equipment.    

12j. Library Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  68,730  68,730 
Add: Fund received during the year  866  - 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (189)  - 
Less: Fund transfer to Library Programme Fund  (69,407)  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  -  68,730 

Library Fund is used for purchase and repair of equipment, software, reading materials and supplies 
of the Library programme.         
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12k. Public Education Fund 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  15,839  15,941 
Less: Expenses during the year  -  (102)
Balance at the end of the financial year  15,839  15,839 

Public education fund is used for the Association’s ongoing efforts in education and creating 
awareness among the public.  
       

12l. Recreational Therapy Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year  6,042  6,042 

Recreational Therapy Fund is used for training with therapy. It promotes both physical and mental 
well-being of clients through music, art and gardening. It is also used for payment of Touch Art 
materials and tools for recreational activities.        
       

12m. Rehabilitation Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  29,552  29,823 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (1,139)  (271)
Less:  Fund transfer to Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund  (28,413)  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  -  29,552 

Rehabilitation Fund is used towards the purchase of training equipment and provision of 
rehabilitation services for all clients in the Vision Rehabilitation Programme, which include clients 
with multiple disabilities. This fund would also help towards covering any shortfall in the funding 
of professional services and expertise required for the rehabilitation of clients. Equipment may 
include:             
   
(a) Talking books and toys for young clients 

 For developmental skills training, to develop young clients’ communication skills and also for 
educational purposes.

(b) Devices and appliances for clients of all age groups   

 For activities related to developing skills for daily living and for home re-modifications.

(c) Rehabilitation equipment for clients of all age groups

 To improve clients’ general physical and mental condition through therapeutic training, 
especially for training body coordination, both gross and fine motor skills, and functional 
skills and to improve sensory integrative functions.      
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12n. SAVH Scholarship Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year  50,000  50,000 

SAVH Scholarship Fund is used for disbursing scholarships which give visually impaired persons an 
opportunity to go overseas for short periods (up to a maximum of one year) to gain exposure and 
expertise. The person could be on an exchange programme or attend a short course overseas. The 
objectives of this fund are for clients to acquire more specialised skills from overseas and to return 
to transfer the expertise acquired and to groom other visually impaired persons to be future leaders 
of the Association and the visually impaired community.

12o. Skills Training Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  98,077  91,013 
Add: Income during the year  44,895  57,075 
Less: Expenses during the year  (40,502)  (50,011)
Balance at the end of the financial year  102,470  98,077 

Skills Training Fund is used to equip clients with the skills to become qualified job candidates, develop 
a care plan or maintenance of clients’ job, market clients’ skills to potential employers and train 
clients to become more productive workers. The fund will also pay allowances to clients or trainees 
from the sale proceeds of handicraft products as well as for payment of general purchases. 

12p. White Cane Day Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  103,048  21,429 
Add:  Income during the year  10,409  85,989 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (3,943)  (4,370)
Balance at the end of the financial year  109,514  103,048 

 White Cane Day Fund is used for White Cane Day expenses and for creation of public awareness, in 
particular, to potential employers of the visually impaired, and for honouring the many achievements 
of the visually impaired.         

12q. Baking Fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  3,806  - 
Add:  Income during the year  195  3,806 
Less:  Expenses during the year  -  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  4,001  3,806 

Baking fund is used for raw materials used for baking cakes and other types of biscuits.   
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12r. Home Care Programme fund

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  90,000  - 
Add: Fund transfer from President’s Challenge Fund  150,000  - 
Add: Income during the year  35,000  90,000 
Less: Expenses during the year  (66,144)  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  208,856  90,000 

Home Care Programme Fund is used for paying staff employed for this program, transport cost to 
ferry staff to the homes of clients and all cost related to this program.
             

13. DONATED ASSETS CAPITALISATION FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Unamortised balance at the beginning of the financial year 98,020 111,100 
Additions, at cost  28,107  23,820 
Less:  Amortisation  (27,195)  (36,900)
Unamortised balance at the end of the financial year  98,932  98,020 

This fund is created to capitalise assets that are donated to the Association.    
     

14. MOBILE MASSAGE FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  46,378  57,155 
Add: Income

Donations  2,061  2,319 
Service income  558,560  443,287 
Sponsorship  262  96 
Miscellaneous income  18,882  904 
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund  253  1,848 

 580,018  448,454 
Less: Expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment  (617)  (1,955)
Operating expenses  (489,783)  (400,546)
Staff costs  (61,870)  (56,730)

 (552,270)  (459,231)

Balance at the end of the financial year 74,126  46,378 

This fund comprises the proceeds received from donors and the revenue received from massage 
services rendered after deducting amounts paid to masseurs. Expenses incurred by the Mobile 
Massage Team (MMT) Department are disbursed from this fund.    
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15. PRESIDENT’S CHALLENGE FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  300,042  300,042 
Add:  Fund received during the year  150,000  - 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (298,451)  - 
Less:  Fund transfer to Home Care Programme Fund  (150,000)  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  1,591  300,042 

This fund was initiated by Mr SR Nathan while he was President of Singapore to help the less fortunate 
and to generate public understanding of the critical needs of the less fortunate in Singapore.  
    

16. SCHOLARSHIP AND TRAINING RESERVE FUND 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year  23,816  23,816 

This fund is used for disbursing scholarships which give visually impaired persons an opportunity 
to go overseas for short periods (up to one year) to gain exposure and expertise. The person could 
be on an exchange programme or attend a short course overseas. The objectives of this fund are for 
clients to acquire more specialised skills from overseas and to return to transfer the expertise and 
to groom other visually impaired persons to be future leaders of the Association and the visually 
impaired community.          
          

17. STAFF WELFARE FUND 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  1,386  1,386 
Add: Fund received during the year  500  - 
Less: Expenses during the year  (600)  - 
Balance at the end of the financial year  1,286  1,386 
This fund is set up by the National Council of Social Services (“NCSS”) for the social welfare of the 
Association’s staff.  
    

18. TAN CHAY BING EDUCATION FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  50,100  40,100 
Add: Funds received during the year  50,000  50,000 
Less: Expenses during the year  (42,200)  (40,000)
Balance at the end of the financial year  57,900  50,100 

This fund provides bursaries to primary to tertiary level visually impaired students, who are from 
households with a combined income of less than $1,500.     
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19. THE ESTATE OF RENEE CHEW FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  21,650  35,168 
Less: Expenses during the year  -  (6,668)

Cost of equipment  (2,086)  (6,850)
Balance at the end of the financial year  19,564  21,650 

This fund provides for the maintenance of SAVH facilities.

20. CREDIT SUISSE TUITION SUBSIDY SCHEME FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  12,900  19,900 
Add:  Funds received during the year  -  1,000 
Less:  Expenses during the year  (3,600)  (8,000)
Balance at the end of the financial year  9,300  12,900 

This fund is created from a donation from Credit Suisse through their Asia Pacific Philanthropy 
Committee and is used to provide a tuition subsidy to visually impaired students at the Light House 
School.  

21. WHITE CANE CLUB PROJECT FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  14,407  17,682 
Add: Income

Donations  23,992  14,249 
Miscellaneous income  2,720  91 
Membership subscription  78  422 

 26,790  14,762 
Less: Expenses

Operating expenses  (9,851)  (10,470)
Staff costs  (6,964)  (7,567)

 (16,815)  (18,037)

Balance at the end of the financial year  24,382  14,407 
         
This fund is used for White Cane Club expenses, such as staff costs and other operating expenses.
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22. BRAILLE PRODUCTION UNIT PROGRAMME FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

       Restated # 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  (58,644)  (31,095)
Add: Income

Grants received during the year  201,709  163,686 
Donations  6,842  1,380 
Sales income  106,438  96,698 
Miscellaneous income  1,767  6,439 
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund  4,704  - 
Fund transfer from Braille Fund  2,163  - 

 323,623  268,203 

Less: Expenses
Depreciation of plant and equipment  (5,957)  (777)
Operating expenses  (138,611)  (107,040)
Staff costs  (208,133)  (187,935)

 (352,701)  (295,752)

Balance at the end of the financial year  (87,722)  (58,644)

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement 

22. BRAILLE PRODUCTION UNIT PROGRAMME FUND (CONT’D)

The BPU Fund comprises mainly a grant received from NCSS under Community Chest Grant Funding, 
income from provision of Braille transcription services  for students, educational institutions, public 
and private organisations, and donations from individual and corporate donors. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.    
     

23. LIBRARY PROGRAMME FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

       Restated # 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  (41,665)  (25,033)
Add: Income

Grants received during the year  4,600  35,222 
Miscellaneous income  46  130 
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund  192  192 
Fund transfer from Braille Fund  69,407  - 

 74,245  35,544 
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23. LIBRARY PROGRAMME FUND (Cont’d)

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

       Restated # 

Less: Expenses
Depreciation of plant and equipment  (279)  (279)
Operating expenses  (22,864)  (21,233)
Staff costs  (32,030)  (30,664)

 (55,173)  (52,176)

Balance at the end of the financial year  (22,593)  (41,665)

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

The Library Programme Fund comprises mainly a grant from NCSS under the Community Chest 
Grant Funding and donations received from individual and corporate donors. This programme 
provides clients with loans of reading materials like Braille and talking books, and multimedia like 
music CDs and DVD movies with audio description. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.

24. LOW VISION CLINIC PROGRAMME FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

       Restated # 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  (247,989)  (222,560)
Add: Income

Grants received during the year  61,248  59,297 
Donations  -  200 
Miscellaneous income  15,228  10,299 
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund  1,374  1,177 

 77,850  70,973 
Less: Expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment  (1,896)  (1,699)
Operating expenses  (28,987)  (25,968)
Staff costs  (74,329)  (68,735)

 (105,212)  (96,402)

Balance at the end of the financial year  (275,351)  (247,989)

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

The LVC Fund comprises mainly a grant from TOTE Board Social Service Fund through NCSS and 
also income received from programme fees from clients and fees from teaching institutions.  This 
programme provides clients with assessment and review of their vision by optometrists and 
recommendation for low vision devices where necessary. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.
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25. VISION REHABILITATION PROGRAMME FUND

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

       Restated # 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  (69,673)  9,593 
Add: Income

Grants received during the year  253,129  241,811 
Donations  3,150  - 
Miscellaneous income  80,526  2,425 
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund  936  2,703 
Fund transfer from Rehabilitation Fund  28,413  - 

 366,154  246,939 

Less: Expenses
Depreciation of plant and equipment  (1,020)  (1,649)
Operating expenses  (124,927)  (103,851)
Staff costs  (319,187)  (220,705)

 (445,134)  (326,205)

Balance at the end of the financial year  (148,653)  (69,673)

  # Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

 The VRP Fund comprises mainly a grant from TOTE Board Social Service Fund through NCSS and 
also donations received from corporate and individual donors to operate and provide vision 
rehabilitation for clients.  This programme provides training and help to clients in areas like basic 
cane techniques, orientation & mobility and activities of daily living. Other assistance and case 
management are also addressed through this programme. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.     
        

26. OTHER PAYABLES   

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Other payables  48,021  84,577 
Accruals  89,042  90,343 
Deferred revenue  15,041  14,464 

 152,104  189,384 

Other payables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated. At  
year-end date, other payables are denominated in Singapore Dollars.
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27. DONATIONS 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Tax deductible donations  369,763  213,772 
Non-tax deductible donations  236,217  158,806 

 605,980  372,578 

28. FUND RAISING 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Add: Fund raising income
Tax deductible donations  477,848  607,113 
Non-tax deductible donations  243,773  285,527 
Sales- Tickets  152,524  135,342 
Sponsorships  137,800  25,900 

 1,011,945  1,053,882 

Less: Fund raising related expenses  (61,189)  (103,777)
Net proceeds  950,756  950,106 

During the financial year, the Association held Donation Draw, Zetland- SAVH Scrabble, Courage 
Walk, Flag Day, SAVH- Qin Huai Charity Concert, among several fundraising events.   
             

29. GRANTS AND FUNDINGS

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

National Council of Social Service  206,309  198,908 
TOTE Board  314,377  301,108 
VCF funding  19,195  15,106 
Miscellaneous grants  1,140  - 

 541,021  515,122 
 

30. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Administration  134,364  3,252 
Assistive Device Centre  13,312  1,422 
Low Vision Clinic  10,000  5,097 
Mobile Massage Fund  18,814  904 
Operational Support Service  54,733  338 
Vision Rehabilitation Programme  80,298  2,425 
Other miscellaneous income  6,592  11,300 

 318,113  24,738 
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31. OTHER INCOME

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Interest income  14,634  29,406 
Dividend income  414  442 
Job credits  83,364  31,600 
Other income  5,722  410 

 104,134  61,858 

32. SALES AND SERVICES 

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Braille Production Unit  106,438  96,698 
Designated Donation  281,834  226,583 
Mobile Massage  558,560  443,288 
Skills Development Programme  -  2,045 

 946,832  768,614 
    

33. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES EXPENSES  

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Cost of sales  134,352  122,209 
CPF, SDF and FWL  106,000  85,807 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  30,418  33,796 
Disbursement from projects  298,452  - 
Disbursement to trainees  74,821  82,451 
General expenses  24,951  25,014 
Masseur’s charges  440,730  353,440 
Operational expense  340,970  260,686 
Printing and stationery  60,799  36,776 
Professional fees  20,865  19,739 
Repairs and maintenance  70,982  58,481 
Staff salary and bonus  841,530  679,758 
Supplies production  44,958  38,629 
Utilities  48,376  47,854 
Other expenses  58,759  90,160 

 2,596,963  1,934,800 
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34. OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

CPF, SDF and FWL  21,655  24,133 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  6,607  11,351 
Disbursement to trainees  13,134  - 
Financial and accounting services  76,487  60,745 
Operational expense  37,238  40,145 
Printing and stationery  10,404  11,145 
Professional fees  30,805  7,134 
Staff salaries and bonuses  163,415  175,488 
Utilities  10,278  9,121 
Other expenses  44,291  24,242 

 414,314  363,504 
        

35. TAXATION

The Association is registered as a charity under the Charities Act, Cap 37 and an Institution of Public 
Character under the Income Tax Act, Chapter 134. By virtue of Section 13 of the Income Tax Act, 
income of any charity registered under the Charities Act, Cap 37 is exempted from taxation with 
effect from the year of assessment 2008.        
       

36. EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 

The number of employees (including key management personnel) whose remuneration exceeds 
$50,000 in the year is as follows: 

2014 2013 
Number of employees in bands:
$50,001 to $100,000  2  2 

Total number of staff  41  37 

Key management personnel are:         
   
(a) The Executive Director having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 

controlling the activities of the Association directly or indirectly.
     
(b) The Executive Committee is the final authority and is overall responsible 

for policy making and determination of all activities. Executive Committee 
members are volunteers and received no monetary remuneration for their 
contribution.                                                                                                
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37. RESERVE AND POLICY  

The reserve position of the Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2014 is as follows:        

Percentage 
2014 2013 Increase of increase 

                  $                    $  $ %
       Restated 

# 

Accumulated funds  4,734,157  3,714,384  1,019,773  27.45 

Ratio of funds to annual
operating expenditure  11.43  10.22  1.21  11.82 

# Refer to Note 41 for the 2013 restatement

The Association’s reserve policy is as follow:

The reserve of Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped provides financial stability and 
the means for the development of Association’s activity. Singapore Association of the Visually 
Handicapped intends to maintain the reserve at a level sufficient for its operating needs.

The Executive Committee will review annually the amount of funds that is required to ensure that 
they are adequate to fulfill the Association’s continuing obligations.
 

38. MANAGEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

It is not the practice for the trustees/office bearers, or people connected with them, to receive 
remuneration, or other benefits, from the Association for which they are responsible, or from 
institutions connected with the Association. 

All committee members and staffs of the Association are required to read and understand the 
conflict of interest policy in place and make full disclosure of interests, relationships and holdings 
that could potentially result in conflict of interests. When a conflict of interest situation arises, the 
committee members and staffs shall abstain from participating in the discussion, decision making 
and voting on the matter.   
   

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES     

(a) Categories of financial instruments

 The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period:
2014 2013 

                    $                      $  
Financial assets
Financial assets, available-for-sale  1,000  1,000 
Other receivables                                  948,634  442,069 
Cash and cash equivalents                                          5,455,721  4,545,965 

 6,405,355  4,989,034 

Financial liability
Other payables                                       137,063  174,920 
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives

 The Association’s overall financial risk management programme seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects of financial performance of the Association.

 There has been no change to the Association’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner 
in which it manages and measures the risk.     

(c) Market risk          

(i) Foreign exchange risk

 As the Association’s transactions are denominated in Singapore Dollars, the Association 
in not exposed to any foreign currency risk. As such, sensitivity analysis is not necessary.

(ii) Interest rate risk

 The Association’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the interest-
bearing fixed deposits. The fixed deposit bears interest of financial position date and the 
periods in which they mature are as follows:         

2014 2013 
                    $                      $  

Within one year - fixed rate
Fixed deposits  -  2,150,000 

Interest on financial instruments is fixed until the maturity of the instruments. The other 
financial instruments of the Association that are not included in the above table are not 
subject to interest rate risks.

 The Association’s Statement of Financial Activities account and reserve are not 
significantly affected by the changes in interest rates as the interest-bearing financial 
instruments carry fixed interest rates and are measured at amortised cost. As such, 
sensitivity analysis is not necessary.

(d) Liquidity risk

 The Association monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents 
deemed adequate by the Executive Committee to finance the Association’s operations and to 
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Typically, the Association ensures that it has 
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses.             

 The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial 
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial 
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Association can be required to pay.

Contractual cash flows
Carrying Within 
amount Total 1 year 

$ $ $ 
2014
Other payables  137,063  137,063  137,063 

2013
Other payables  174,920  174,920  174,920 
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)

(e) Credit risk

 The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables represent the Association’s 
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. No other financial assets carry 
a significant exposure to credit risk.

 The Association places its managed investment portfolio, bank balances and fixed deposits 
with reputable established financial institutions. Therefore, credit risk on these financial assets 
is limited because the counter-parties are banks with acceptable credit ratings.

 The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the 
Association’s maximum exposure to credit risk.      

(f ) Market price risk 

 Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of the Association’s financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than interest or exchange rates). The 
Association is not exposed to market price risk.          
      

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

(a) Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value

 The Association measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements: 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs)

 At 31 March 2014, the association only held investment security (available-for-sale) amounting 
to $1,000 (2013:$1,000). The fair value measurement of these investment security is categorised 
as Level 3 (2013: Level 3)       

(b) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying 
amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value   

 Management has determined that the carrying amounts of other receivables, cash and bank 
balances and other payables reasonably approximate their fair values either due to their short 
term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates 
on or near the statement of financial position date
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41. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

From Year 2008 to 2013, the Braille Production Unit Programme Fund and Library Programme Fund 
comprised mainly a grant received from NCSS under Community Chest Grant Funding and from 
Year 2010 to 2013, the Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund and Vision Rehabilitation Programme 
Fund comprised mainly a grant from TOTE Board Social Service Fund through NCSS. These funds 
should be recorded in the Restricted Fund instead of the Accumulated Fund. During the year, the 
Association reclassified these as amounts drawn down from the Accumulated Fund. As required by 
the FRS, the following financial statements have been reclassified and restated. 

As previously Amount
stated reclassified Restated
2013 2013 2013 

$ $ $
Statement of Financial Position

Accumulated Funds  3,296,414  417,970  3,714,384 

Restricted Funds
Braille Production Unit Programme Fund  -  (58,644)  (58,644)
Library Programme Fund  -  (41,664)  (41,664)
Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund  -  (247,989)  (247,989)
Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund  -  (69,673)  (69,673)

 -  (417,970)  (417,970)

Statement of Financial Activities

Net surplus transfer to Accumulated Funds  538,749  148,876  687,625 

Add/ (Less): Transfer from/ (to)
Braille Production Unit Programme Fund  -  (27,550)  (27,550)
Library Programme Fund  -  (16,632)  (16,632)
Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund  -  (25,428)  (25,428)
Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund  -  (79,266)  (79,266)

 -  (148,876)  (148,876)

Statement of Cash Flows

Surplus for the financial year  538,749  148,876  687,625 

Net funds increased during the year  325,868  (148,876)  176,992 
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41. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (CONT’D)        
            
 

As previously Amount
stated reclassified Restated
2012 2012 2012 

$ $ $
Statement of Financial Position

Accumulated Funds  2,931,048  269,095  3,200,143 

Restricted Funds
Braille Production Unit Programme Fund  -  (31,095)  (31,095)
Library Programme Fund  -  (25,033)  (25,033)
Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund  -  (222,560)  (222,560)
Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund  -  9,593  9,593 

 -  (269,095)  (269,095)

42. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS       
             

The financial statements of the Association for the financial ended 31 March 2014 were authorised 
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Executive Committee on 21 July 2014. 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We would like to extend our heartfelt thanks and appreciation to the following:

All our kind donors for their generous contribution in cash and in kind;

All our corporate sponsors for their kind sponsorship and community service;

All our committed volunteers who tirelessly gave of their time and effort;

Special thanks go to the following for their assistance, 
contributions and/or Funding:

National Council Of Social Service

Tote Board (Singapore Totalisator Board)

BGC Partners (Singapore) Limited

Building & Construction Authority

Chartered Asset Management Pte Ltd

Credit Suisse

Estate Of Henry Bolter Deceased

Estate Of Navroji Rustamji Mistri Deceased

Estate Of Phirozshaw Maneckji Famroz Deceased

Goldmann Sachs (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Presidents Challenge

Standard Chartered Bank

Zetland Lodge Of The East

Wilmar International Ltd

Leeward Pacific Pte Ltd

Symasia Singapore Fund

Mr Chua Beng Ee

Mdm Lee Ying

Wee Aik Koon Pte Ltd

Inner Wheel Club Singapore



Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped
47 Toa Payoh Rise, Singapore 298104
Tel: (+65) 6251 4331
Fax: (+65) 6253 7191
Website: www.savh.org.sg


